

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)
ACN 004 282 955 ABN 69 004 282 955

# 81st Annual Report

and financial statements

Year ended  $30^{th}$  June 2023

# Contents

WITH THANKS FROM OUR VALUED PARTNERS	3
BOARD of MANAGEMENT	4
OFFICE BEARERS SINCE INCORPORATION	5
MEMBERS OF COMMITTEES	6
PRESIDENT'S REPORT	7
SENIOR PREMIERSHIP RESULTS	9
JUNIOR 'OPEN' PREMIERSHIP RESULTS	9
JUNIOR FEMALE PREMIERSHIP RESULTS	9
SENIOR REPRESENTATIVE CRICKET	10
JUNIOR REPRESENTATIVE CRICKET	12
E. J. CLEARY MEDAL - FIRST XI COMPETITION	19
BERNIE DAVEY MEDAL - SECOND XI COMPETITION	21
SENIOR WOMEN'S BEST AND FAIREST	23
BCA SENIOR CHAMPION PLAYERS	24
BEST JUNIOR CRICKETERS	24
JUNIOR ASSOCIATION AWARDS	25
FINANCIAI STATEMENTS	24

#### WITH THANKS FROM OUR VALUED PARTNERS









# ALFREDTON DENTAL PH: 5334 2500

PROUD SPONSORS OF BALLARAT CRICKET













#### **BOARD of MANAGEMENT**

R.H. Hollioake M.B.E. O.A.M. A.S.M. Patron: **David Nichols President:** Ben Molloy **Treasurer: Director: Rob Florence** Peter Le Lievre **Director: Director:** Victoria Kennedy Max Drew **Director:** Natalie Grero **Director:** Jins Jacob **Director: Director:** Ian Morris **Operations Officer:** Jenna Fowlie Joshua Pegg **Life Members:** W. H. Heinz\* O.A.M. L. J. Dunkley-Smith E. C. Kirton A. J. Spratling V. J. Cahill R. M. Lythgo R.H. Hollioake M.B.E. O.A.M. A.S.M. G. M. McRae R. W. Jennings B. K. Metcalfe T. McCann D. Jacobbson

**Legends:** Rex Hollioake (2017)

Allan Spratling (2018)

# **OFFICE BEARERS SINCE INCORPORATION**

	OFFIC	.E t	SEAKERS S	INCE INCORPORATION	
Patrons:	1950	-	1971	A. W. Wilson	
	1971	-	2003	W. H. Heinz*	O.A.M.
	2003	-		R.H. Hollioake	M.B.E. O.A.M. A.S.M.
Presidents:	1950	-	1951	W. Roff	
	1951	-	1970	W. H. Heinz*	O.A.M.
	1970	-	1975	R. Hall	
	1975	-	2003	R.H. Hollioake	M.B.E. O.A.M. A.S.M.
	2003	-	2011	R. W. Jennings	
	2011	-	2013	A. R. Parker	
	2013	-	2014	D. Nichols	
	2015	-	2021	R. Florence	
	2021	-		D. Nichols	
Treasurers:	1950	-	1952	K. Schonell	
	1952	-	1974	E. C. Kirton*	
	1974	-	1977	M. Smith	
	1977	-	1982	I. G. Howes	
	1982	-	1982	D. Taylor	
	1982	-	1997	G. D Harry	
	1997	-	2011	B. K. Metcalfe	
	2011	-	2012	S. J. Lockyer	
	2013	-	2014	D. W. Dawson	
	2014	-	2015	R. Florence	
	2015	-	2018	M. W. Grogan	
	2018	-	2021	J. F. Edmends	
	2021	-	2022	J. Penhall	
	2022	-		B. Molloy	
Secretaries:	1950	-	1955	P. Hunt	
	1955	-	1958	D. Moverley	
	1958	-	1960	L. Fullerton	
	1960	-	1985	L. J. Dunkley – Smith	
	1985	-	1990	P. M. Burnett	
	1990	-	1991	L. Robertshaw / R. Mankad	
	1991	-	1994	G. K. Hood	
	1994	-	2013	D. A. Jacobsson	
Operations Officer:	2014	-	2015	B. J. Severino	
	2015	-	2021	G. L. Wakeling	
	2021	-	2023	J. C. Fowlie	

#### **MEMBERS OF COMMITTEES**

<b>Pennant</b>	<b>Committee:</b>
----------------	-------------------

**Chairperson:** Wayne Hinchcliffe

Paul Hayes Peter Mackay

Mark Harris Danyel Attard

Darran Fowlie

**Grounds Committee:** 

**Chairperson:** N/A

N/A N/A

N/A

**Selection Committee:** 

**Chairperson:** N/A

N/A

N/A

**Appeals Committee:** 

**Chairperson:** N/A

N/A N/A N/A

**Ballarat Cricket Umpires Association:** 

President: Gavin Drew
Secretary: lan Morris
Treasurer: Tony Trist
Umpires Advisor: Graeme Lee

#### **PRESIDENT'S REPORT**

It is my pleasure to submit the Ballarat Cricket Associations (BCA) Presidents Report for season 2022 – 23 on behalf of the entire Board of Directors of the BCA which continued to serve the association over the past season.

For season 2022 – 23 we again had a full compliment of Directors, with Mr. Ian Morris, Ms. Natalie Grero, Mr. Jins Jacobs and Mr. Ben Molloy joining the Board.

With the resignation of BCA Operations Officer Ms. Jenna Fowlie, we welcome Mr. Joshua Pegg to the position. Joshua certainly has big boots to fill but we are sure he will be a success as he settles into the job. Personally, I would like to thank Jenna for all her work whilst in the employment of the BCA, Jenna's professional attitude, attention to detail and friendly smile will be sorely missed, I'm sure she will be an asset as she moves to bigger and better things.

We have two Board members stepping down this year, Ms. Victoria Kennedy, and Mr. Rob Florrence. Victoria has been a driving force in many areas across her tenure on the Board, her work in developing, promoting and delivering within the female cricket space has laid the path for future success, likewise with her work with the Junior Sub Committee, where she was a proactive advocate. Victoria will remain within the association in a consulting role as we work with other partners to develop future opportunities. Thank you, Victoria for all your help.

Significantly Mr. Rob Florrence has called time on the Board. Coming onto the Board initially has Treasurer Rob took over as President in 2014. Laying the foundations of the merge of Club and District cricket, the development of the Strategic Partnership, his work with promotion of Junior cricket and his leadership shown through the Covid pandemic are all legacies of Rob's presidency. I sincerely want to thank Rob for all his work. I wish to acknowledge and thank our sponsors for the past year — Alfredton Dental, Kookaburra, Florence Audit and Assurance, Ballarat Ground Works, Waller and Chester, the City of Ballarat, Sebastopol Dental, 4CYTE Pathology and Rebel Sports.

We welcome two new Clubs to the association, Ballarat Women's Cricket Club and the Baccus Marsh Cricket Club.

Ballarat Women's Cricket Club (Bolts) – offers open age cricket to female competitors across a number of competitions, the Bolts play a significant part in the development and promotion of the game in Ballarat and offer a pathway for women to enter the game. Congratulations to club President Ms. Jenna Fowlie. Bacchus Marsh Cricket Club (Bulls) – Joining the BCA season 2023 – 24 the BMCC Bulls will be fielding 6 Senior mens teams and 2 open Junior teams, this is an exciting opportunity for both the BCA and the BMCC. Congratulations to club President Mr. David Kralijik.

The previous two seasons were played against the backdrop of covid, this season was again affected by forces outside of our control that being one of the wettest years for some time. Providing leadership and guidance throughout all the seasons were the Pennant Committee, led by Mr. Wayne Hinchliffe, the team were again able to guide the competition through very trying times. I want to thank Wayne and the team for all their work.

I want to take the time to personally thank Vice President Mr. Peter LeLievre. Peter has committed endless hours to the betterment of the association, as a diligent Chairman of the Board, he has continued work with the City of Ballarat in the promotion of all things cricket, his work in attracting Bacchus Marsh to the competition, his work with various sub committees are all foundation stones for the future of cricket in Ballarat and district. Thank you, Peter.

Highlights of this season were -

100 years of Melbourne Country Week – the centenary match played between Ballarat and Hamilton saw Ballarat win by 5 wickets, remarkably the same result as the game from 100 years ago. Special thanks to WCC for their assistance on making the event a success.

WBBL Big Bash – Ballarat again played host to teams from the Melbourne Renegades, Melbourne Stars, Sydney Sixers, and Hobart Hurricanes at the eastern Oval in the Ballarat Festival of Cricket.

4 Day Grand Final – Wendouree CC and East Ballarat CC played off in what will become one of the most talked about matches in BCA history with East Ballarat winning in the last hour of the last day.

E.J Cleary Medal Winner – Mr. Col Roscholler (Wendouree CC)

Senior Female Cricket of the Year – Ms. Maddie Ogilvie. (Golden Point CC)

Bernie Davey Medalist - Sandaken Pathirana (Creswick Imperials CC)

Special thanks go to Gavin Drew and the members of the Ballarat Cricket Umpires Association for their continued support.

In conclusion I would personally like to thank all members of the BCA Board – once again the level of professionalism showed by each of you to ensure the success of the competition is outstanding and again it's been a pleasure to work with you.

Best wishes to all involved in Ballarat cricket, and I once again look forward to 2023 – 24.

#### SENIOR PREMIERSHIP RESULTS

The season 2022/23 Senior finals series were played with a four-day grand final in the  $1^{st}$  XI, two-day grand finals in  $2^{nd}$ ,  $3^{rd}$  and  $4^{th}$  XI and one-day grand final in the  $5^{th}$  XI. The Senior Women were involved in their first full season, having played T20 games on a Friday night throughout the season. Those teams successful in attaining premierships were: -

Women – Ballarat Redan CC

1<sup>st</sup> XI – East Ballarat CC

2<sup>nd</sup> XI Div 1 – Burrumbeet CC

2<sup>nd</sup> XI Div 2 – Lucas CC

3<sup>rd</sup> XI Div 1 – Mt Clear CC

3<sup>rd</sup> XI Div 2 – Coronet City/Newlyn CC

4<sup>th</sup> XI – Mt Clear CC

5<sup>th</sup> XI Div 1 – Ballarat Redan Gold CC

5<sup>th</sup> XI Div 2 – Golden Point CC

#### JUNIOR 'OPEN' PREMIERSHIP RESULTS

The season 2022/23 Junior Grand Finals were fortunate with weather during the finals series and all games went ahead as per scheduled. Those teams successful in attaining premierships were: -

U17 1<sup>st</sup> XI – Buninyong CC U15 1<sup>st</sup> XI – Wendouree CC U15 2<sup>nd</sup> XI – Wendouree Red CC U13 Hollioake – Golden Point CC U13 Spratling – Beaufort CC

#### JUNIOR FEMALE PREMIERSHIP RESULTS

The season 2022/23 Junior female competitions were a huge success with continuing on with U14s on Friday afternoons and U17s on Tuesday afternoons. The successful premiership teams were: -

U17 – Mt Clear CC U14 – Mt Clear CC

# SENIOR REPRESENTATIVE CRICKET Melbourne Country Week - Provincial 2022/23

#### **SQUAD MEMBERS – Darren Fletcher, Darren Woodyatt & Stuart Lacy (Coach, Team Manager & Scorer)**

Liam Brady ©	(WCC)	Heath Pyke	(WCC)	Harry Ganley	(EBCC)	Sajith Dissanayaka	(NSCC)
Jacob Eyers	(EBCC)	Matt Aikman	(BRCC)	Nathan Patrikeos	(BRCC)	Viraj Pushpakumara	(NSCC)
Zac Jenkins	(BRCC)	Tom Le Lievre	(MCCC)	Harry Killoran	(DARLEY)	Rory Low	(EBCC)
Ash McCafferty	(WCC)						

#### Melbourne Country Week - Provincial - Round 1

Dates	Home Team	Away Team	Venue
13 Feb 23 Balla	rat <b>10/158</b>	def by Geelong 6/294 (cc)	Eastern Oval
Zac J	lenkins 60	Zac Jenkins 2/30	
		Viraj Pushpakumara 2/42	

#### Melbourne Country Week - Provincial - Round 2

Dates	Home Team		Away Team	Venue
14 Feb 23	Leongatha <b>9/204 (cc)</b> Ash McCafferty 2/30 Matt Aikman 2/39 Nathan Patrikeos 2/42	def	Ballarat <b>10/176</b> Sajith Dissanayaka 96	Greaves Reserve #4

#### Melbourne Country Week - Provincial - Round 3

Dates	Home Team		Away Team	Venue
15 Feb 23	Traralgon 9/205 (cc)	def	Ballarat <b>4/209</b>	Schramms
	Ash McCafferty 4/50		Sajith Dissanayaka 84	Reserve #2
	Harry Killoran 3/25		Harry Ganley 60*	
	Matt Aikman 2/35		Zac Jenkins 42	

#### Melbourne Country Week - Provincial - Round 4

Dates	Home Team		Away Team	Venue
	Ballarat <b>5/246 (cc)</b> Zac Jenkins 67	def	Ferntree Gully <b>4/252</b> Nathan Patrikeos 3/66	Jubilee Park
,	Tom Le Lievre 48* Rory Low 40 Heath Pyke 30		ridarian radinicos s, es	

The Melbourne Country Week - Provincial tournament was won by FERNTREE GULLY.

# Festival of Women's Cricket 2022/23

#### **SQUAD MEMBERS – Peta Guy (COACH)**

Summer Dehnert ©	(BHCC)	Jasmine Walton	(BRCC)	Tracey Werts	(EBCC)	Eloise Davenport	(MCCC)
Peta Guy	(BHCC)	Rebecca Piper	(BHCC)	Michelle Smith	(EBCC)	Jordan Chettleburgh	(BHCC)
Tessa Patrikeos	(BRCC)	Jane Hodge	(EBCC)	Cindy Chettleburgh	(BHCC)	J	, ,

#### Festival of Women's Cricket - Round 1

Dates	<b>Home Team</b>		Away Team	Venue
17 Dec 22 Barwon		def by Ballarat		Eastern Reserve

#### Festival of Women's Cricket - Round 2

Dates	Home Team			Away Team	Venue
17 Dec 22 Ballarat		٧	BYE		Eastern Reserve

#### Festival of Women's Cricket – Round 3

Dates	Home Team		Away Team	Venue
17 Dec 22 Ballar	rat <b>7/76 (cc)</b>	def	Colac 3/79	Eastern Reserve
Cindy	Chettleburgh 27	by		

The Festival of Women's Cricket tournament was won by WARRNAMBOOL.

# JUNIOR REPRESENTATIVE CRICKET Western Victoria Girls Shield – U18 FEMALE 2022/23

#### **U18 SQUAD MEMBERS – Steve Young & Jenna Fowlie (COACHES)**

		•		•	•	-	
Jensen Hoare	(WCC)	Ally Steenhuis	(WCC)	Charli McLennan	(EBCC)	Imogen O'Brien	(B'YONG)
Megan O'Beirne	(BWCC)	Ella Young	(MCCC)	Victoria Berton	(BWCC)	Eloise Davenport	(MCCC)
Annabelle Moloney	(B'YONG)	Lucy King	(BRCC)	Lexi Ryan	(MCCC)	Grace Argall	(WCC)

#### U18 Western Victoria Girls Shield - Round 1

Dates	Home Team	Away Team	Venue
17 Jan 23 Colad	2/107 (cc)	def by Ballarat 5/108 (cc)	Pedrina Park 2
		Annabelle Moloney 57*	

#### U18 Western Victoria Girls Shield - Round 2

Dates	Home Team		Away Team	Venue
17 Jan 23 Balla	rat 3 <b>/126</b>	def	Geelong <b>6/122 (cc)</b>	Monivae College
Imog	gen O'Brien 62		Lucy King 3/4	_

#### U18 Western Victoria Girls Shield – Round 3

Dates	Home Team	Away Team	Venue
18 Jan 23	Hamilton/Wimmera <b>10/79</b> Megan O'Beirne 2/4	def by Ballarat <b>3/161 (cc)</b> Charli McLennan 66*	Melville Oval
		Annabelle Moloney 49*	

#### U18 Western Victoria Girls Shield - Round 4

Dates	Home Team	Away Team	Venue
Me Luc	uth East <b>10/67</b> egan O'Beirne 2/5 cy King 2/8 ctoria Berton 2/9	def by Ballarat <b>1/72</b>	Melville Oval

#### U18 Western Victoria Girls Shield - Round 5

Dates	Home Team	Away Team	Venue
19 Jan 23 Balla	rat <b>7/96 (cc)</b>	def by Warrnambool 1/141 (cc)	Monivae College
Jense	en Hoare 33		

#### U18 Western Victoria Girls Shield - FINAL

Dates	Home Team		Away Team	Venue
19 Jan 23	Ballarat <b>2/152 (cc)</b> Imogen O'Brien 63 Ally Steenhuis 48	def	Colac <b>9/106 (cc)</b> Charli McLennan 4/17 Ally Steenhuis 2/9 Victoria Berton 2/15	Monivae College

#### The U18 Western Victoria Girls Shield tournament was won by BALLARAT.

# Western Victoria Girls Shield – U16 FEMALE 2022/23

#### U16 SQUAD MEMBERS – Issy Hoye & Ciane Van Dyken (COACHES)

Ruby Gardiner	(MCCC)	Layla Jones	(BRCC)	<b>Bridgette Andrews</b>	(WCC)	<b>Holly Brewer</b>	(GDCA)
Sam Horan	(EBCC)	<b>Grace Collier</b>	(EBCC)	Willow Manford	(EBCC)	Freyja Niehus	(MCCC)
Lexi Jones	(BRCC)	Masyn Hucker	(BRCC)	Emma Niessen	(GDCA)	Josie Brodie	(MCCC)

#### U16 Western Victoria Girls Shield - Round 1

Dates	Home Team	Away Team	Venue
17 Jan 23 Gee	elong <b>4/74</b>	def by Ballarat 3/73 (cc)	Kennedy Oval
		Holly Brewer 47*	(Turf)

#### U16 Western Victoria Girls Shield - Round 2

Dates	Home Team		Away Team	Venue
17 Jan 23	Ballarat <b>3/111 (cc)</b> Ruby Gardiner 44 Emma Niessen 42*	def	Colac <b>7/104 (cc)</b> Willow Manford 2/16	Kennedy Oval (Synthetic)

#### U16 Western Victoria Girls Shield - Round 3

Dates	Home Team		Away Team	Venue
18 Jan 23	Warrnambool 3/102 (cc)	def	Ballarat 10/95 (cc)	Hamilton College
	Emma Niessen 3/8		Holly Brewer 31	

#### U16 Western Victoria Girls Shield - Round 4

Dates	Home Team		Away Team	Venue
18 Jan 23	Sunraysia <b>10/107 (cc)</b> Ruby Gardiner 3/14 Masyn Hucker 3/20	def	Ballarat <b>4/92 (cc)</b> Emma Niessen 37	Hamilton College

#### U16 Western Victoria Girls Shield - Round 5

Dates	Home Team		Away Team	Venue
	Ballarat <b>5/82 (cc)</b> Emma Niessen 25	def	Hamilton <b>7/63 (cc)</b> Ruby Gardiner 2/3 Masyn Hucker 2/5 Grace Collier 2/7	Kennedy Oval (Synthetic)

#### The U16 Western Victoria Girls Shield tournament was won by SUNRAYSIA.

# Western Victoria Girls Shield – U14 FEMALE 2022/23

#### U14 SQUAD MEMBERS – Anthony McIlwaine & Max Burton (COACHES)

Clover McIlwaine	(BALLAN)	Jayda Wright	(CRESWICK)	Eliza Yean	(BRCC)	Tanae Grero	(GDCA)
Kori Davenport	(BALLAN)	Keira O'Beirne	(MCCC)	Annie McNeight	(BRCC)	Ava Wakeling	(BRCC)
Sarah Burton	(BALLAN)	Liv Kennedy	(MCCC)	Bella Gardiner	(MCCC)	Meg Mason	(MCCC)
Kate Hardacre	(WCC)						

#### U14 Western Victoria Girls Shield - Round 1

Dates	Home Team		Away Team	Venue
17 Jan 23 Ba	allarat 7/80 (cc)	def	Geelong 6/74 (cc)	Pedrina Park 1
Ke	eira O'Beirne 27		Clover McIlwaine 3/13	

#### U14 Western Victoria Girls Shield - Round 2

Dates	Home Team		Away Team	Venue
17 Jan 23	Colac <b>10/53</b> Eliza Yean 3/2 Annie McNeight 2/4 Tanae Grero 2/5	def by	Ballarat <b>0/54 (cc)</b>	Pedrina Park 1

#### U14 Western Victoria Girls Shield - Round 3

Dates	Home Team		Away Team	Venue
18 Jan 23	Ballarat <b>5/128 (cc)</b> Sarah Burton 36*	def	Hamilton <b>5/98 (cc)</b> Eliza Yean 2/6	Mitchell Park

#### U14 Western Victoria Girls Shield - Round 4

Dates	<b>Home Team</b>			Away Team	Venue
18 Jan 23 Ballarat		V	BYE		

#### U14 Western Victoria Girls Shield - Round 5

Dates	Home Team		Away Team	Venue
19 Jan 23 Ballara Sarah	at <b>5/166 (cc)</b> Burton 105*	def	Wimmera <b>4/119 (cc)</b>	Pedrina Park 3

#### U14 Western Victoria Girls Shield - FINAL

Dates	Home Team	Away Team	Venue
	rrnambool <b>7/69 (cc)</b> ver McIlwaine 4/12	Ballarat <b>2/105 (cc)</b> Jayda Wright 59*	Kennedy Oval (Synthetic)

#### The U14 Western Victoria Girls Shield tournament was won by BALLARAT.

# **CENTRAL HIGHLANDS REGION 3 – U17 KIRTON SHIELD 2022/23**

#### U17 SQUAD MEMBERS - Ollie Mahncke (COACH)

Ryan Lister	(BALLAN)	Gibson Paxman	(EBCC)	Ky Jans	(MCCC)	James Parkinson	(B'YONG)
Angus Watson	(GPCC)	Fletcher Downs	(B'YONG)	Damian Irvin	(BRCC)	Zac Healy	(NSCC)
Eli Holloway	(GPCC)	Darcye Moloney	(B'YONG)	Tim Mani	(MCCC)	Will Brand	(EBCC)

#### U17 Kirton Shield - Round 1

Dates	Home Team		Away Team	Venue
Da	allarat <b>10/145</b> amian Irvin 32 y Jan 27	def	Gisborne White <b>10/114</b> Tim Mani 3/6 Ryan Lister 2/11 James Parkinson 2/21	Western Oval

#### U17 Kirton Shield - Round 2

Dates	Home Team	Away Team	Venue
17 Jan 23 Gi	sborne Green 10/190	def by Ballarat 10/232 (cc)	Gardiner
Da	arcye Moloney 3/14	Damian Irvin 63	Reserve
Za	ic Healy 2/23	Ky Jans 43	
Eli	Holloway 2/24	Will Bran 30	

#### **U17 Kirton Shield – Round 3**

Dates	Home Team	Away Team	Venue
19 Jan 23	Grampians 10/99	def by Ballarat 3/100	Alexandra Oval
	Eli Holloway 3/0	Gibson Paxman 56*	
	Gibson Paxman 2/8	Ryan Lister 30*	

#### **U17 Kirton Shield – FINAL**

Dates	Home Team		Away Team	Venue
29 Jan 23	Ballarat <b>9/115</b> Ky Jans 33 Angus Watson 25	def	Gisborne White <b>9/114 (cc)</b> Zac Healy 2/8 Darcye Moloney 2/20 Tim Mani 2/28	CE Brown Reserve

The Central Highlands Region 3 Under 17 Kirton tournament was won by BALLARAT.

# BARWON/CENTRAL HIGHLANDS CHAMPIONSHIPS – U15 MALE 2022/23

#### U15 SQUAD MEMBERS – Matt Skinner & Carl Reinehr (COACHES)

Ben Appleton	(GPCC)	Sean Mason	(B'YONG)	George Reinehr	(WCC)	Aidyn Matheson	(MCCC)
Murphy Skinner	(WCC)	Zachary Simon	(GPCC)	Lockie McLennan	(EBCC)	Jack McMahon	(EBCC)
Logan Attard	(VRI)	Charlie Mahncke	(WCC)	Oliver McCormack	(GPCC)	Will Chamings	(EBCC)
Charlie Eckel	(WCC)						

#### U15 Barwon/Central Highlands Championships - Round 1

Dates	Home Team		Away Team	Venue
3 Jan 23	Ballarat <b>6/214 (cc)</b> Charlie Mahncke 94 Murphy Skinner 53	def	Geelong Red <b>5/211 (cc)</b>	Buninyong Recreation Reserve

#### U15 Barwon/Central Highlands Championships – Round 2

Dates	Home Team		Away Team	Venue
4 Jan 23	Bellarine <b>8/245 (cc)</b> Will Chamings 3/37	def	Ballarat <b>9/188 (cc)</b> Murphy Skinner 100*	Buninyong Recreation Reserve

#### U15 Barwon/Central Highlands Championships – Round 3

Dates	Home Team	Away Team	Venue
5 Jan 23	Colac <b>10/77</b> Murphy Skinner 3/3 Charlie Mahncke 3/7	def by Ballarat 4/78 (cc)	Northern Oval

#### U15 Barwon/Central Highlands Championships - Round 4

Dates	Home Team		Away Team	Venue
5 Jan 23	Ballarat <b>2/92</b> Charlie Mahncke 42* Aidyn Matheson 26	def	Geelong Yellow <b>5/90 (cc)</b> Jack McMahon 2/14	Mt Clear Recreation Reserve

#### U15 Barwon/Central Highlands Championships - Round 5

Dates	Home Team		Away Team	Venue
6 Jan 23	Gisborne <b>10/182</b> Logan Attard 2/24 Charlie Mahncke 2/25	def by	Ballarat <b>5/183 (cc)</b> Murphy Skinner 72* Zac Simon 33 George Reinehr 30	MacPherson Park #2

#### U15 Barwon/Central Highlands Championships - FINAL

Dates	Home Team		Away Team	Venue
3 Jan 23	Bellarine <b>10/96</b> Charlie Mahncke 3/17	def	Ballarat 10/62	Grinter Reserve

#### The U15 Barwon/Central Highlands Championships was won by BELLARINE.

# **CENTRAL HIGHLANDS REGION 3 – U15 COUNTRY WEEK 2022/23**

#### U15 SQUAD MEMBERS - Nathan Patrikeos (COACH)

Campbell McPhan	(GPCC)	Mako Soloman	(GPCC)	Zac Griffin	(BRCC)	Zac McKerrow	(WCC)
Jesse Carroll	(NSCC)	Xavier Cummins	(B'YONG)	George Martindale	(DARLEY)	Finn Hoare	(WCC)
Caden Clark	(MCCC)	Xavier Coutts	(WCC)	Ned Murnane	(NSCC)	Lachlan Morris	(WCC)
<b>Emerton Hooper</b>	(GPCC)						

#### U15 Country Week - Round 1

Dates	Home Team		Away Team	Venue
3 Jan 23	Ballarat <b>9/225 (cc)</b> Mako Soloman 71 George Martindale 37 Finn Hoare 34*	tied	Grampians <b>10/225</b> Emerton Hooper 3/30 Lachlan Morris 3/58 Zac Griffin 2/17 Xavier Coutts 2/18	Alfredton 2

#### U15 Country Week – Round 2

Dates	Home Team		Away Team	Venue
4 Jan 23	Maryborough <b>10/104</b> Zac Griffin 2/6 Emerton Hooper 2/10 Lachlan Morris 2/18	def by	Ballarat <b>9/130 (cc)</b> Xavier Coutts 38	JH Hedges Memorial Oval

#### U15 Country Week – Round 3

Dates	Home Team		Away Team	Venue
5 Jan 23	Gisborne <b>7/142 (cc)</b> Zac Griffin 2/11 Zac McKerrow 2/20	def	Ballarat <b>9/91 (cc)</b> George Martindale 43	Tony Clarke Recreation Reserve

#### **U15 Country Week – Finals**

<b>Dates</b>	Home Team		Away Team	Venue
6 Jan 23	Maryborough <b>10/76</b> Caden Clark 4/18 Lachlan Morris 3/13	def by	Ballarat <b>8/130 (cc)</b> Zac McKerrow 46 Ned Murnane 33	JH Hedges Memorial Oval

The Central Highlands Region 3 Under 15 Country Week tournament was won by GISBORNE.

# **CENTRAL HIGHLANDS REGION 3 – U13 COUNTRY WEEK 2022/23**

#### U13 SQUAD MEMBERS (BALLARAT BLUE) – Adrian Irvin & Dan Hopkinson (COACHES)

Luke Irvin Henry Hopkinson Lucas Byrne Aayushmaan Ahlawat	(NSCC) (WCC) (BRCC) (WCC)	Oliver Tickell Jackson Kane Zac Symons	(GPCC) (WCC) (MCCC)	Henry Grant Liam Humphries Whitiora Kilmartin	(WCC) (GPCC) (DARLEY)	Jack Ward Joseph Knobel Will Eckel	(WCC) (GPCC) (WCC)
ι	J13 SQUAD	MEMBERS (BALL	ARAT WHIT	TE) – Luke Steenhuis	& Tim Land	t (COACHES)	
Abel Giles	(EBCC)	George Collins	(MCCC)	Harvey Gittins	(B'YONG)	Lucas Polansk	e (GPCC)
Ethan Bartlett	(BRCC)	George Farrell	(EBCC)	Kai Landt	(MCCC)	Matt Staples	(BRCC)
Ryan Cook	(EBCC)	Tom Gardiner	(MCCC)	Sullivan Horwood	(EBCC)	Will Steenhuis	(WCC)
Tom Hodge	(EBCC)						

#### U13 Country Week – Round 1

Dates	Home Team		Away Team	Venue
3 Jan 23	Ballarat Blue <b>5/235 (cc)</b> Will Eckel 42*; Liam Humphries 41*; Luke Irvin 40*; Henry Grant 30; Whitiora Kilmartin 29	def	Grampians <b>10/96</b> Jack Ward 3/10; Luke Irvin 2/2; Whitiora Kilmartin 2/3	Russell Square #3
3 Jan 2	Ballarat White	V	BYE	

#### U13 Country Week – Round 2

Dates	Home Team		Away Team	Venue
4 Jan 23	Ballarat Blue <b>8/135 (cc)</b> Luke Irvin 40*; Lucas Byrne 29	def	Gisborne Green <b>7/83 (cc)</b> Henry Hopkinson 2/5; Jack Ward 2/10	Darley Civic Hub
4 Jan 23	Ballarat White <b>8/174 (cc)</b> Sullivan Horwood 40*	def	Gisborne White <b>9/154 (cc)</b> Will Steenhuis 3/13	White Flat Oval

#### **U13 Country Week - Round 3**

Dates	Home Team		Away Team	Venue
5 Jan 23	Castlemaine <b>10/108</b> Liam Humphries 2/5; Oliver Tickell 2/9; Jack Ward 2/14	def by	Ballarat Blue <b>4/180 (cc)</b> Luke Irvin 44*; Will Eckel 39*; Oliver Tickell 29*; Whitiora Kilmartin 25	Mapson- Timmins Oval
5 Jan 23	Maryborough <b>9/147 (cc)</b> George Farrell 5/10 Kai Landt 2/16	def	Ballarat White <b>10/105</b> Tom Gardiner 26	Jubilee Oval

#### **U13 Country Week – Finals**

Dates	Home Team		Away Team	Venue
6 Jan 23	Ballarat Blue <b>4/202 (cc)</b> Luke Irvin 44*; Will Eckel 41*; Lucas Byrne 35; Oliver Tickell 32*	def	Castlemaine <b>10/79</b> Whitiora Kilmartin 2/1; Jack Ward, Aayushmaan Ahlawat 2/8	Russell Square #3
6 Jan 23	Ballarat White	V	BYE	

#### The Central Highlands Region 3 Under 13 Country Week tournament was won by BALLRAT BLUE.

#### **E. J. CLEARY MEDAL - FIRST XI COMPETITION**

Season 2022/23 saw a tight race in the finish with Cole Roscholler (Wendouree) triumphant after a stellar season with the bat amassing 627 runs at an average of 62.70.

Dilan Chandima from Darley came in a close second with 666 runs at 60.55 and 18 wickets at 12.17, just one vote behind Roscholler.

Josh White (Golden Point) continued his brilliant form over the past few years finishing on 13 votes this season after scoring 554 runs at 50.36.

Votes	Player	Club
16	Cole Roscholler	Wendouree
15	Dilan Chandima	Darley
13	Josh White	Golden Point
11	Manjula De Zoysa	Golden Point
10	Harry Ganley	East Ballarat
10	Jayden Hayes	Ballarat Redan
10	Tom Le Lievre	Mt Clear
10	Simon Ogilvie	Golden Point
10	Ryan Knowles	Brown Hill

#### Previous winners of the E.J. Cleary Medal – First XI – Cricketer of the Year

	Previous williers of the E.J. Cleary Medal – First XI – Chicketer of the Year										
Year	Player	Club		Year	Player	Club	Year	Player	Club		
63/64	Robert Whitcher	Brown Hill		84/85	Brett Millgate	Mt Clear	04/05	Rob Delmenico	Wendouree		
64/65	Rex Hollioake	Mt Clear		85/86	Brett Millgate*	Mt Clear	05/06	Matt Kelton	Golden Point		
65/66	David Morton	Ballarat		86/87	Wayne Morgan	Brown Hill	06/07	Simon Allan	Ballarat-Redan		
66/67	David Morton*	Ballarat		87/88	Peter Thompson	North Ballarat	07/08	Eamon Johnson	Wendouree		
67/68	Derek Minter	Wendouree		88/89	Andrew Leach	Wendouree	08/09	Matt Goonan	Mt Clear		
07/08	Geoff McRae	Wendouree		89/90	Neil Lee	Golden Point	08/09	Nathan Yates	East Ballarat		
68/69	Garry English	Redan		90/91	Neil Lee*	Golden Point	00/10	Matt Goonan*	Mt Clear		
69/70	Trevor McCann	Brown Hill		91/92	Brett Millgate**	East Ballarat	09/10	Eamon Johnson*	Wendouree		
70/71	Trevor McCann*	Brown Hill		92/93	Damian Ryan**	East Ballarat	10/11	Nathan Yates*	East Ballarat		
71/72	Peter Oxlade	Ballarat-Redan		93/94	Robert Orr	Golden Point	11/12	Daniel Davies	Naps-Sebas		
72/73	Damian Ryan	Brown Hill		04/05	Phil McFarlane	Ballarat-Redan	12/12	Matt Cape	Darley		
72/74	Damian Ryan*	Brown Hill		94/95	David Thomson	Coronet-Invermay	12/13	Matt McMahon	Brown Hill		
73/74	Garry Snowden	Mt Clear		95/96	Ross Ferris	Brown Hill	13/14	Matt Cape*	Darley		
74/75	Jim Flemming	North Ballarat		96/97	Shane Harwood	Brown Hill	14/15	Liam Rigby	Naps-Sebas		
75/76	David Tuddenham	Mt Clear		97/98	Carman Mapatuna	Naps-Sebas	15/16	Nathan Yates**	Mt Clear		
76/77	Terry Davies	North Ballarat		98/99	David Thomson*	East Ballarat	16/17	Matt Ringin	Naps-Sebas		
77/78	Trevor McCann**	Brown Hill		99/00	Matt Hoey	Ballarat-Redan	17/18	Steve Nicholson	Mount Clear		
78/79	Robert Button	Brown Hill		00/01	John Gleeson	Brown Hill	18/19	Nathan Yates***	Mount Clear		
79/80	Robert Whitcher*	Brown Hill		01/02	Paull Jeffrey	Mt Clear	10/20	Sam Burgess	Ballarat-Redan		
80/81	Robert Button*	Brown Hill		02/03	Daniel Hopkinson	North Ballarat	19/20	Cole Roscholler	Wendouree		
81/82	Peter Brady	Wendouree		02/04	Peter Cartledge	North Ballarat	20/21	Sam Miller	Wendouree		
82/83	Scott Fisher	Wendouree		03/04	Matt Skinner	Wendouree	21/22	Dilan Chandima	Darley		
83/84	David Beames	Wendouree		04/05	Peter Cartledge*	North Ballarat	22/23	Cole Roscholler*	Wendouree		

The Board of the Ballarat Cricket Association player performance awards were awarded for the 23<sup>rd</sup> time in season 2022/23 for the First XI. Details of these awards are as follows:

#### **BATTING AGGREGATE**

	BATTING AGGREGATE											
Pos	Player	Club	Runs	Ave	Pos	Player	Club	Runs	Ave			
1	Dilan Chandima	Darley	666	60.55	6	Harry Ganley	East Ballarat	417	46.33			
2	Cole Roscholler	Wendouree	627	62.70	7	Ryan Knowles	Brown Hill	412	34.33			
3	Josh White	Golden Point	554	50.36	8	Rory Low	East Ballarat	408	40.80			
4	Manjula De Zoysa	Golden Point	494	49.40	9	Danza Hyatt	Darley	401	80.20			
5	Tom Le Lievre	Mt Clear	440	62.86	10	Jarrod Burns	Mt Clear	366	52.29			

			PREVIOU	S WINNERS			
Season	Player	Club	Runs	Season	Player	Club	Runs
2020/2021	Sam Miller	Wendouree	934	2009/2010	Matthew Goonan	Mt. Clear	725
2019/2020	Cole Roscholler	Wendouree	649	2008/2009	Nathan Yates	East Ballarat	605
2018/2019	Josh White	Golden Point	799	2007/2008	Joshua White	Golden Point	495
2017/2018	Steve Nicholson	Golden Point	513	2006/2007	Sam Miller	Wendouree	657
2016/2017	Heath Pyke	Wendouree	412	2005/2006	Matthew Kelton	Golden Point	718
2015/2016	Saman Jayantha	Golden Point	581	2004/2005	Chris Bambury	Ballarat/Redan	511
2014/2015	Nathan Yates	Mt. Clear	511	2003/2004	Matthew Skinner	Wendouree	641
2013/2014	Carman Mapatuna	Naps/Sebas	574	2002/2003	Paull Jeffrey	Mt. Clear	589
2012/2013	Tristan Dixon	Wendouree	557	2001/2002	Paull Jeffrey	Mt. Clear	560
2011/2012	Tristan Dixon	Wendouree	468	2000/2001	John Gleeson	Brown Hill	577
2010/2011	Nathan Yates	East Ballarat	496	1999/2000	Ross Ferris	Brown Hill	527

#### **BOWLING AGGREGATE**

	BOWLING AGGREGATE											
Pos	Player	Club	Wkts	Ave	Pos	Player	Club	Wkts	Ave			
1	Madushanka Ekanayaka	Darley	24	10.25	6	Mitch Tierney	Buninyong	21	26.10			
2	Viraj Pushpakumara	Naps Sebas	23	18.48	7	Josh Brown	East Ballarat	20	20.05			
3	Tom Batters	Wendouree	22	16.73	8	Simon Ogilvie	Golden Point	19	21.84			
4	Grant Trevenen	Mt Clear	22	18.95	9	Dilan Chandima	Darley	18	12.17			
5	Nathan Patrikeos	Ballarat Redan	21	19.52	10	Ash McCafferty	Wendouree	18	16.44			

	PREVIOUS WINNERS											
Season	Player	Club	Wkts	Season	Player	Club	Wkts					
2021/22	Ash McCafferty	North Ballarat	35	2011/2012	Matthew McMahon	Brown Hill	40					
2020/2021	Ash McCafferty	North Ballarat	38	2010/2011	Ashley Ringin	Naps/Sebas	33					
2019/2020	Sam Burgess	Ballarat/Redan	32	2009/2010	Eamon Johnson	Wendouree	45					
2018/2019	Ash McCafferty	North Ballarat	35	2008/2009	Peter Moore	Darley	31					
2017/2018	Ash McCafferty	North Ballarat	27	2007/2008	Eamon Johnson	Wendouree	38					
2016/2017	Darcy Thomson	Mt. Clear	29	2006/2007	Simon Allan	Ballarat/Redan	43					
2015/2016	Heath Pritchard	Darley	38	2005/2006	Simon Irving	East Ballarat	27					
2015/2016	Eamon Johnson	Wendouree	38	2004/2005	Brendan Thomson	Naps/Sebas	32					
2014/2015	Andy Warrick	Golden Point	32	2003/2004	Andrew Stevens	Brown Hill	35					
2013/2014	Eamon Johnson	Wendouree	39	2002/2003	Brendan Thomson	Naps/Sebas	33					
2012/2013	Matthew McMahon	Brown Hill	53	2001/2002	Danny Illingworth	Mt. Clear	31					

#### HIGHEST INDIVIDUAL SCORE

Cole Roscholler – Wendouree. Round 17 v Buninyong – 191

#### **BEST BOWLING FIGURES IN AN INNINGS**

Simon Ogilvie – Golden Point. Round 16 v Naps Sebas – 20 – 6 – 7/55

#### **MOST DISMISSALS BY A WICKET KEEPER**

Heath Pyke – Wendouree. 23 dismissals

#### **BERNIE DAVEY MEDAL - SECOND XI COMPETITION**

Creswick all-rounder, Sandaken Pathirana, took out the Bernie Davey medal for season 2022/23 by 1 vote ahead of a compacted chasing pack.

Sandaken had an incredibly consistent season polling best on ground in 6 games. He made 370 runs at 46.25 and took 41 wickets at 6.83.

It was a tight scrap for the minor placings with Jason Crosbie and Nick Martin receiving 19 and 18 votes respectively.

Votes	Player	Club
20	Sandaken Pathirana	Creswick
19	Jason Crosbie	North Ballarat
18	Nick Martin	Burrumbeet
15	Linden Anderson	Lucas
13	Jared Guy	Coronet City
12	Michael Kuiper	Lucas
12	Corey Hucker	Naps Sebas

## Previous winners of the Bernie Davey Medal – Second XI – Cricketer of the Year

		beiline Davey in
Year	Player	Club
82/83	32/83 Bruce LeMaitre Elaine	
83/84	Chris Mullane	Ballan
84/85	Wayne Anderson	Lucas
85/86	Geoff Murnane	Cattleyards Inn
86/87	Chris Mullane*	Ballan
87/88	Terry Ebery	Lucas
88/89	Noel Lock	Sebastopol
89/90	Geoff Martin	Napoleons
90/91	Wayne Barringer	Buninyong
91/92	Rod Gladman	Coronet
92/93	Dale Harris	Buninyong
93/94	Greg Kitchen	Buninyong
95/94	Darren Chalmers	Brimarco Black Hill
94/95	Dale Harris*	Buninyong
95/96	Peter Mead	Dunnstown
96/97	Peter Mead*	Dunnstown
90/97	Wayne Martin	Burrumbeet
97/98	Bryce Nicholson	Buninyong
98/99	Wayne Martin*	Burrumbeet
99/00	Jaye Cahir	Dunnstown
00/01	Wayne Martin**	Burrumbeet
01/02	Greg Bray	Lucas

dai – Second Ai – Cricketer of the					
Year	Player	Club			
02/03	Matthew Squire	Haddon			
03/04	Jeffrey Chalmers	Imperials			
04/05	Colin Bride	Lucas			
05/06	Linden Anderson	Lucas			
06/07	Paul Phillips	Dunnstown			
07/08	Rhys Cahir	Dunnstown			
08/09	Joel Kitchen	Buninyong			
09/10	Jaye Cahir*	Dunnstown			
10/11	Joel Kitchen*	Buninyong			
11/12	Paul Phillips*	Dunnstown			
12/13	Kane Leathem	Creswick			
13/14	Dale Jeffrey	Lucas			
14/15	Noel Heafield	Ballan			
15/16	Cameron Dunne	Dunnstown			
16/17	Jaye Cahir**	Dunnstown			
17/18	Jarrod Burns	VRI Delacombe			
18/19	Michael Snaith	Ballan			
19/20	Brad Dunbar	Coronet City			
20/21	Lachlan Snaith	Ballan			
21/22	Adam Toohey	Dunnstown			
22/23	Sandaken Pathirana	Creswick			

The Board of the Ballarat Cricket Association player performance awards were awarded for the 8<sup>th</sup> time in season 2022/2023 for Second XI, replacing the former District Division 1. Details of these awards are as follows:

#### **BATTING AGGREGATE**

	BATTING AGGREGATE								
Pos	Player	Club	Runs	Ave	Pos	Player	Club	Runs	Ave
1	Michael Kuiper	Lucas	576	82.29	6	Corey Hucker	Naps Sebas	457	114.25
2	Brad Dunbar	Coronet City	566	43.54	7	Mick Nolan	Ballan	447	55.88
3	Linden Anderson	Lucas	558	93.00	8	Richard Palmer	Creswick	403	50.38
4	Nick Martin	Burrumbeet	526	65.75	9	Jason Crosbie	North Ballarat	380	34.55
5	Jared Guy	Coronet City	479	47.90	10	Stephen Segrave	Wendouree	372	37.20

	PREVIOUS WINNERS							
Season	Player	Club	Runs	Season	Player	Club	Runs	
2021/2022	Adam Toohey	Dunnstown	635	2012/2013	Mick Loughnane	Ballan	382	
2020/2021	Adam Toohey	Dunnstown	480	2011/2012	Paul Phillips	Dunnstown	529	
2019/2020	Michael Knight	VRI Delacombe	642	2010/2011	Paul Phillips	Dunnstown	401	
2018/2019	Justin Murley	Coronet City	521	2009/2010	Paul Phillips	Dunnstown	381	
2017/2018	Jarrod Burns	VRI Delacombe	915	2008/2009	Joel Kitchen	Buninyong	554	
2016/2017	Mick Nolan	Ballan	595	2007/2008	Paul Phillips	Dunnstown	418	
2015/2016	Joel Kitchen	Buninyong	636	2006/2007	Paul Phillips	Dunnstown	667	
2014/2015	Reece Isbister	VRI Delacombe	428	2005/2006	Xavier Watson	VRI Delacombe	654	
2013/2014	Paul Phillips	Dunnstown	478					

#### **BOWLING AGGREGRATE**

	BOWLING AGGREGATE								
Pos	Player	Club	Wkts	Ave	Pos	Player	Club	Wkts	Ave
1	Sandaken Pathirana	Creswick	41	6.83	6	Damon Simpkin	Lucas	21	10.52
2	Jason Crosbie	North Ballarat	38	10.29	7	Vikrant Dabra	Lucas	21	12.10
3	Jared Guy	Coronet City	27	8.56	8	Joseph Ashmore	East Ballarat	21	12.38
4	Nick Martin	Burrumbeet	24	11.33	9	Jeremy Learmonth	Dunnstown	21	16.48
5	Brendan Thomson	Ballarat-Redan	21	9.90	10	Toby Gilbey	Ballarat Redan	19	12.37

	PREVIOUS WINNERS							
Season	Player	Club	Wkts	Season	Player	Club	Wkts	
2021/2022	Nick Smith	Golden Point	24	2010/2011	Jake Harris	Buninyong	24	
2020/2021	Paul Aikman	Ballarat-Redan	31	2010/2011	Jeffrey Chalmers	Creswick Imperials	29	
2019/2020	Stuart Calder	East Ballarat	33	2009/2010	Joel Kitchen	Buninyong	29	
2018/2019	Anthony Bailey	Coronet City	39	2009/2010	Jaye Cahir	Dunnstown	40	
2017/2018	Anthony Bailey	Coronet City	32	2008/2009	Jaye Cahir	Dunnstown	44	
2016/2017	Jaye Cahir	Dunnstown	43	2007/2008	Jeffrey Chalmers	Creswick Imperials	44	
2015/2016	Jaye Cahir	Dunnstown	33	2007/2008	Rhys Cahir	Dunnstown	34	
2014/2015	Aaron Wilson	Burrumbeet	30	2006/2007	Jeromy Johnston	VRI Delacombe	38	
2013/2014	Dale Jeffrey	Lucas	30	2005/2006	Jason Yole	VRI Delacombe	13	
2012/2013	Ryan Aquilina	Ballan	26	2004/2005	Danyel Attard	VRI Delacombe	15	
2011/2012	Anthony Walsh	Dunnstown	24	2003/2004	Rhys Cahir	Dunnstown	13	

#### **HIGHEST INDIVIDUAL SCORE**

Michael Kuiper – Lucas. Round 7 v Brown Hill – 180

#### **BEST BOWLING FIGURES IN AN INNINGS**

Jason Crosbie – North Ballarat. Round 7 v Wendouree – 31.3 – 14 – 8/52

#### **MOST DISMISSALS BY A WICKET KEEPER**

Dave Horwood – Lucas. 24 dismissals

#### SENIOR WOMEN'S BEST AND FAIREST

2022/23 saw the first season of the Senior Women's Competition played over 12 weeks with a grand final. As such, the Senior Women's Best and Fairest was awarded for the first time.

Golden Point all-rounder, Maddy Ogilvie, took out the Senior Women's Best and Fairest for season 2022/23 by 4 votes. Maddy made 214 runs at 214.00 and took 5 wickets at 15.80.

It was a tight finish for the minor placings with Rebecca Piper and Tessa Patrikeos finishing with 13 votes and 11 votes respectively.

Votes	Player	Club
17	Maddy Ogilvie	Golden Point
13	Rebecca Piper	Brown Hill
11	Tessa Patrikeos	Ballarat Redan
10	Renee Jennings	East Ballarat/Wendouree
8	Freya Palmer	Buninyong
8	Catherine Faull	East Ballarat/Wendouree

The Board of the Ballarat Cricket Association player performance awards were awarded for the 1st time in season 2022/2023 for the Senior Women. Details of these awards are as follows:

#### **BATTING AGGREGATE**

BATTING AGGREGATE						
Pos	Player	Club	Runs	Ave		
1	Maddy Ogilvie	Golden Point	214	214.00		
2	Catherine Faull	East Ballarat/Wendouree	186	62.00		
3	Tessa Patrikeos	Ballarat Redan	159	53.00		
4	Renee Jennings	East Ballarat/Wendouree	154	51.33		
5	Lindsay Tucker	Brown Hill	144	72.00		

#### **BOWLING AGGREGRATE**

	BOWLING AGGREGATE					
Pos	Player	Club	Wickets	Ave		
1	Rebecca Piper	Brown Hill	19	8.05		
2	Beth Taylor	Ballarat Redan	12	2.33		
3	Ainslee Chalmers	Golden Point	8	10.00		
4	Cindy Chettleburgh	Brown Hill	8	10.50		
5	Phoenix Neil	Ballarat Redan	6	7.67		

#### **HIGHEST INDIVIDUAL SCORE**

Megan O'Beirne – Mt Clear. Round 7 v East Ballarat/Wendouree – 48\*

#### **BEST BOWLING FIGURES IN AN INNINGS**

Cindy Chettleburgh – Brown Hill. Round 6 v Mt Clear – 2 - 0 - 4/5

#### **MOST DISMISSALS BY A WICKET KEEPER**

Tahleah Ticehurst – Golden Point. 4 dismissals

#### **BCA SENIOR CHAMPION PLAYERS**

Grade	Player	Club	Points
1 <sup>st</sup> XI	Dilan Chandima	Darley	1006
2 <sup>nd</sup> XI	Sandaken Pathirana	Creswick	1055
3 <sup>rd</sup> XI	Steven Nicholson	Mt Clear	857
4 <sup>th</sup> XI	Tim Gallagher	Darley	774
5 <sup>th</sup> XI	Adam Griffin	Ballarat Redan	783
Women	Rebecca Piper	Brown Hill	402

#### **BEST JUNIOR CRICKETERS**

In season 2021/22, the Board of the Ballarat Cricket Association introduced the "Best Junior Female Cricketer" and the "Best Junior Male Cricketer" awards. This award was voted on by a panel from Club nominations. The criterion for this award includes excelling in choice of cricketing skill, representative cricket, leadership, contribution to the game of cricket, epitomizes Club values and personal attributes.

The winner of the Best Junior Male Cricketer for season 2022/23 was **Zane Attard**. Zane played cricket for VRI and Ballarat Redan in the BCA, Premier 3<sup>rd</sup> XI (Geelong CC), U17 Dowling Shield (Geelong CC and captain) and Youth Premier League (Central Highlands and captain). Zane had a successful season whereby he was named as "Player of the Series" for the Renegades half of the State. During the Youth Premier League, he took 21 wickets which is the most ever taken by an individual in the U16 male tournament. Zane is a competitive cricketer but always plays with the highest level of sportsmanship. He assisted in U15 BCA Barwon/Central Highlands team with their training sessions and warmups. Additionally, Zane umpires in BCA junior competitions when available.

The winner of the Best Junior Female Cricketer for season 2022/23 was **Charli McLennan**. Charli played cricket for East Ballarat U15 1<sup>st</sup> XI, Carlton Premier 1<sup>st</sup> XI, BCA U18s, U16 Vic Country team and Ballarat Clarendon College 1<sup>st</sup> XI (girls' team). Charli batted at #3 for Carlton Premier 1<sup>st</sup> XI most weeks where she made 207 runs @ 20.7. Charli is a great team mate who creates positive team spirit and is a great role model for those around her. When not playing cricket, Charli umpires in BCA junior and senior competitions, including the Senior Women's grand final.

# **JUNIOR ASSOCIATION AWARDS**

	BCA JUNIOR FEMALE AWARDS 2022/23					
U17 Female	Best Player Award	Freya Palmer – 14 votes	Buninyong			
U14 Female	Best Player Award	Keira O'Beirne – 19 votes	Mt Clear			
U17 Female	Batting Aggregate	Freya Palmer – 359 runs	Buninyong			
U17 Female	Powling Aggregate	Abby Thorne – 12 wickets	Buninyong			
O17 Female	Bowling Aggregate	Layla Jones – 12 wickets	Ballarat Redan			
U14 Female	Batting Aggregate	Olivia Kennedy – 206 runs	Mt Clear			
U14 Female	<b>Bowling Aggregate</b>	Willow Manford – 8 wickets	East Ballarat			
	BCA JU	JNIOR AWARDS 2022/23				
U17 1st XI	<b>Batting Aggregate</b>	Darcy Aitken – 415 runs	Golden Point			
U15 1st XI	Batting Aggregate	Aidyn Matheson – 239 runs	Mt Clear			
U15 2nd XI	Batting Aggregate	Xavier Cummins – 296 runs	Buninyong			
U13 Hollioake	Batting Aggregate	Clover McIlwaine – 243 runs	Ballan			
U13 Spratling	Batting Aggregate	Tom Grant – 355 runs	Beaufort			
U17 1st XI	Best Player Award	Darcy Aitken – 17 votes	Golden Point			
U15 1st XI	Best Player Award	Charlie Mahncke – 14 votes	Wendouree			
U15 2nd XI	Best Player Award	Jackson Chalmers – 16 votes	Creswick			
U17 1st XI	Bowling Aggregate	Tim Mani – 15 wickets	Mt Clear			
U15 1st XI	<b>Bowling Aggregate</b>	Charlie Mahncke – 16 wickets	Wendouree			
U15 2nd XI	<b>Bowling Aggregate</b>	Jackson Denheyer – 9 wickets	Buninyong			
U13 Hollioake	<b>Bowling Aggregate</b>	Jackson Kane – 16 wickets	Wendouree			
U13 Spratling	Bowling Aggregate	Aidan Grant – 11 wickets	Naps Sebas			
O13 Sprauling	Downing Aggregate	Kolby Haley – 11 wickets	Beaufort			

# Ballarat Cricket Association A.C.N. 004 282 955

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

# Financial Statements

For the Year Ended 30 June 2023

We have pleasure in presenting our report on the state of affairs of the company as at 30 June 2023 and its results for the year then ended.

#### **Directors**

The directors of the company at the date of this report are:

David Nichols

Rob Florence

Peter Le Lievre

Max Drew
Jins Jacob

Natalie Grero

Victoria Kennedy

Ben Molloy
Ian Morris

## **Operating Results**

The net result of the Association was a profit of \$3,934 (2022: profit \$19,751).

#### **Activities**

The principal continuing activities of the company are the promotion, control and administration of the game of cricket and encouragement of social interaction between members of the association.

#### **Dividends Paid or Recommended**

The company is prohibited, pursuant to its Constitution, from paying dividends to its members. Accordingly, no dividend has been paid by the company during the year and no dividend is proposed to be paid to the members.

#### **Review of Operations**

The year has built upon the success of previous years, with thanks to the support of our sponsors and Clubs.

# **Significant Changes**

No significant changes have occurred in the state of affairs of the company during the year.

# Matters Subsequent to the End of the Financial Year

No matter or circumstance has arisen since 30 June 2023 that has significantly affected, or may significantly affect the association's operations, the results of those operations, or the association's state of affairs in future financial years.

#### **Share Options**

No options were granted nor shares issued as a result of the exercise of options during the financial year or since the end of the financial year. No un-issued shares are subject to options at the date of this report.

#### **Future Operations**

No changes to the company are planned which are likely to affect the results of the company in future years.

Directors' Benefits

Since 30 June 2022 no director of the company has received or become entitled to receive a benefit (other than a remuneration benefit included in note 3 to the financial statements) because of a contract that the director, a firm of which the director is a member, or an entity in which the director has a substantial financial interest, has made (during the year ended 30 June 2023 or at any other time) with:

- (a) the company; or
- (b) an entity that the company controlled, or a body corporate that was related to the company, when the contract was made or when the director received, or became entitled to receive, the benefit.

#### **Directors Indemnification**

The company has not, during or since the financial year, in respect of any person who is or has been an officer of the company or a related body corporate:

- indemnified or made any relevant agreement for indemnifying against a liability, including costs or expenses in successfully defending legal proceedings; or
- (b) paid or agreed to pay a premium in respect of a contract insuring against a liability for the costs or expenses to defend legal proceedings.

Signed at Ballarat this 13th day of August, 2023 in accordance with a resolution of directors.

David Nichols = Director

**Ballarat Cricket Association** (A Company Limited By Guarantee) **Directors' Report** 

	une 2023	***
te	<b>2023</b> \$	<b>2022</b> \$
	·	,
inary A	Activities	
	93,400	81,616
	2,691	2,360
	24,562	22,604
		10,986
	10,801	
	,	
	2,755	
	,	
elopme	ent	_
1		
	11.550	
	•	
	2,003	
	156,745	135,300
-		
come		
	Other	-
Bank	2	426 30
	<u>426</u>	5,030
		90
		80
	20.4	
	304	558
	304	
	304	558
	304 275	558
		558
		558
	elopme -	93,400 2,691 24,562  10,801 2,755 elopment  11,550 2,603  156,745   Come Other

Ballarat Cricket Association (A Company Limited By Guarantee) Income Statement			
Depreciation – Fed Uni Synthetic Pitches	2,495		
2,495 Depreciation - Plant & Equipment	1,695		
	1,695		
Depreciation - Eastern Oval Admin Building	5,209	5,209	
EJ Cleary Medal Dinner (Net)	7,927		
	3,145	Ground	
Improvement Expenses & Ground Hire		14,989	
	6,647 I	nsurances	
	3,527		
	4,115		
Finals expenses and umpire fees 3,208	, -		(1,707)
Memberships and Subscriptions 1,753			1,285
Printing, Postage & Stationery	2,834		
	2,263	Senior	
Rep Cricket Uniforms		16,474	
1,554			
Sundry Expenses	3,416	2,537	2.040
Junior/Girls Cricket 1,316			2,040

# **Ballarat Cricket Association** (A Company Limited By Guarantee) **Income Statement**

	Note	<b>2023</b> \$	<b>2022</b> \$
Junior Rep Teams, Coaching, Presentation Night		17,690	15,566
Security Security		380	91
Salary Operations Officer		64,757	59,303
St Patricks Turf Wicket Amortisation		1,071	1,071
Storage Facilities		1,745	1,836
Superannuation		5,900	5,590
Sponsor Expenses		1,097	1,436
Telephone		1,231	1,334
Computer Expenses & Website		241	1,238
Recruitment Cost	-	<del></del>	4,175
Total Expenditure		159,365	130,118
Operating Profit/(Loss) for the Year		(2,194)	10,212
Extraordinary Items:			
Income -			
City of Ballarat Strategic Partnership Funding		100,000	100,000
Expenditure -			
Club Turf Payments and Program Expenditure		93,872	90,461
(\$100,000 acquitted)			
Net Extraordinary Items		6,128	9,539
Profit for the Year		3,934	19,751
Members Funds brought forward		339,878	320,127
Members Funds carried forward		343,812	339,878

The above Income Statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

# **Ballarat Cricket Association** (A Company Limited By Guarantee) **Balance Sheet as at 30 June 2023**

	Note	2023	2022	
Current Assets		\$	\$	
Cash at Bank		170,482	153,842	
Accounts Receivable		-	3,801	
<b>Total Current Assets</b>		170,482	157,643	
Non Current Assets				
Plant and equipment	4	12,807	14,502	
Federation University Synthetic Wickets	5	19,892	22,387	
St Patrick's Turf Wicket contribution	6	2,150	3,221	
Eastern Oval Administration Building	7	145,855	<u>151,064</u>	
<b>Total Non Current Assets</b>		180,704	<u>191,174</u>	
Total Assets		<u>351,186</u>	<u>348,817</u>	
Current Liabilities				
Creditors and other payables	8	<u>7,374</u>	<u>8,939</u>	
Total Current Liabilities		<u>7,374</u>	<u>8,939</u>	
Total Liabilities		<u>7,374</u>	<u>8,939</u>	
Net Assets		343,812	339,878	
Members' Equity		343,812	339,878	

The above Statement of Financial Position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

## Notes To and Forming Part of the Financial Statements For the Year Ended 30 June 2023

#### 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The financial report is a special purpose financial report that has been prepared in accordance with applicable Australian Accounting Standards including applicable Australian Accounting Interpretations, other authoritative pronouncements of the Australian Accounting Standards Board and the *Corporations Act 2001*.

The financial report is for Ballarat Cricket Association as an individual entity, incorporated and domiciled in Australia. Ballarat Cricket Association is a company limited by guarantee.

The following is a summary of the material accounting policies adopted by the entity in the preparation of the financial report. The accounting policies have been consistently applied, unless otherwise stated.

## **Basis of Preparation**

Reporting Basis and Conventions

The financial report has been prepared on an accruals basis and is based on historical costs. It does not take into account changing money values or, except where stated, current valuations of non current assets. Cost is based on the fair values of the consideration given in exchange for assets.

#### (a) Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are brought to account at cost less any accumulated depreciation or amortisation. The depreciable amount of all fixed assets is depreciated on a straight-line basis over the useful lives to the association commencing from the time the asset is held ready for use. The depreciation rate used for plant and equipment ranges from 5.00% to 33.3%.

#### (b) Buildings

The Eastern Oval administration building is brought to account at cost less accumulated depreciation or amortisation. The depreciation rate used for the building is 2.5%.

#### Ballarat Cricket Association (A Company Limited By Guarantee)

(c) Income Tax

The company is exempt from income tax pursuant to Section 23(g)(iii) of the Income Tax Assessment Act 1936.

#### (d) Expenditure on Wickets

The costs of improvements to wickets and preparation of new turf wickets are treated as period costs and included in the determination of the trading results of the company where those assets are not directly owned by the company.

## Notes To and Forming Part of the Financial Statements For the Year Ended 30 June 2023

#### (e) Financial Instruments

#### Credit Risk

The maximum exposure to credit risk, excluding the value of any collateral or other security, at balance date to recognised financial assets is the carrying amount, net of any provisions for doubtful debts, as disclosed in the balance sheet and notes to the financial report. The association does not have any material credit risk exposure to any single debtor under financial instruments entered into by the association.

#### Net Fair Values

- (i) Financial assets where the carrying amount exceeds net fair values have not been written down as the association intends to hold these assets to maturity. Conversely, where the carrying amount is less than the net fair values, such financial assets have not been written up.
- (ii) No financial assets and financial liabilities are readily traded on organised markets in standardised form.
- (iii) For other assets and other liabilities the net fair value approximates their carrying value.

#### (f) Goods and Services Tax (GST)

The company is required to be registered for GST therefore GST is collected on income earned by the company, and GST credits are claimed on expenses paid.

#### (g) St Patrick's Turf Wicket Contribution

On 1 October 2005 an agreement was entered into with St Patrick's College to have non- exclusive use of the Hill Oval. The agreement is for 5 years with three 5 year options. All options have been exercised and the agreement continues. In return, 50% of the turf wicket installations and 50% of the watering system costs were contributed. This is to be amortised over the 20 years of the agreement.

# Notes To and Forming Part of the Financial Statements For the Year Ended 30 June 2023

#### 2. Interest Income

Interest earned during the year on investments is comprised as follows:

		2023	2022
D 4!	D1-	\$	\$
Bendigo	Bank	42	3
Accounts		7	0

## Directors' 3. Remuneration

No directors of the company received any remuneration or emoluments during the year.

## 4. Non-Current Assets - Property, Plant and Equipment

	2023	2022
	\$	\$
Plant and equipment - at cost	84,190	84,190
Less accumulated depreciation	<u>71,383</u>	<u>69,688</u>
	<u>12,807</u>	<u>14,502</u>

#### 5. Non-Current Assets – Federation University Oval Synthetic Wickets

Synthetic Wickets Fed Uni – at cost	24,882	24,882
Less accumulated depreciation	4,990	2,495
_	19 892	22 387

#### 6. Non-Current Assets St Patricks Turf Wicket contribution

	2023	2022	
	\$	\$	
Total contribution to Turf Wicket	21,428	21,428	
Less accumulated amortisation	<u>19,278</u>	18,207	
	2,150	3,221	

# 7. Non Current Asset Eastern Oval Administration Building

	2023	2022
	\$	\$
Building at cost	213,612	213,612
Less accumulated depreciation	<u>67,757</u>	62,548
	<u>145,855</u>	151,064

#### Notes To and Forming Part of the Financial Statements For the Year Ended 30 June 2023

#### 8. Current Liabilities - Creditors and Borrowings

	2023	2022
	\$	\$
PAYG Withholding	4,874	2,400
Accounts Payable	1,050	168
Income Received in Advance	-	2,500
Accrued Annual Leave –	-	3,406
Superannuation Payable	1,450	465
	<u>7,374</u>	<u>8,939</u>

# 9. Guarantee by Members

---

The Constitution of the company limits the amount which members are required to contribute to the assets of the company in the event of it being wound up to \$4 per member.

Ballarat	Cricket	Association	Α	Company	Limited By	v Guarantee	)

#### **Directors' Declaration**

The directors of the company declare that;

- (1) the financial report and notes as presented:-
  - (a) comply with applicable Accounting Standards and the Corporations Law; and
  - (b) give a true and fair view of the financial position as at 30 June 2023 and the performance for the year ended on that date of the company;
- in the directors' opinion there are reasonable grounds to believe that the company will be able to pay its debts as and when they become due and payable.

This declaration is made in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors and is signed for and on behalf of the directors by:

David Nichols - Director

Ben Molloy - Director

Signed at Ballarat this 13th day of August